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At 18 feet, this dam is the lowest of the six surviving dams, but it supported sev-
eral of the most productive enterprises in Ticonderoga. Of all the mill sites along
the River, the Richards Dam alone retains a historical reference in its name.
[ronically, the pulp mill whose name survives did not last as long as the woolen
mill before it.

Hiram & Thomas Treadway built a woolen mill here in 1834, riding the early 19th-
century boom in sheep farming. The sheep were Merinos, a breed imported from Spain
for their long-staple wool which spun up into very fine yarn. The Champlain Valley
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became a center for breeding prize ewes that brought great wealth to local farmers.
Farmers eventually undermined their business by exporting breeding ewes to the west.

In 1893, E. Richards & Sons took over the site to take advantage of the next great
opportunity in the north woods: the making of paper pulp. Richards’ Pulp Mill was
the fourth pulp manufacturer to locate on the LaChute, and went into business the
same year as the Essex County Pulp Mill, just upstream from here. By 1906, Ticon-
deroga Pulp & Paper Company had purchased the site and installed a “dynamo” to
generate electricity.

All images courtesy of the Ticonderoga Historical Society.



